Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1. THE HISTORY, IMPORTANCE, AND RULES OF
SECTION 337 INVESTIGATIONS

I. HISTORY OF SECTION 337
A. GENERALLY
§ 1:1 Introduction
§ 1:2 History
B. AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 337

§1:3 1974 Amendments to Section 337—Trade Act
§1:4 1988 Amendments to Section 337—Omnibus Trade and Competitiveness Act
§ 1:5 1994 Amendments to Section 337—Uruguay Round Agreements Act

§ 1:6 —Elimination of Statutory Time Limits
§ 1.7 —Counterclaims

§1:8 —Parallel Proceedings and Stays

§1:9 —Exclusion Orders

§ 1:10 —Other Amendments

II. IMPORTANCE OF SECTION 337
§ 1:11  Generally

III. COMMISSION RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE—19 CFR 200
ET SEQ.

§ 1:12  Generally

§ 1:13  Access to Commission Rules and Decisions, ALJ Decisions, and Other Important
Documents

§ 1:14 History of the Commission Rules

§ 1:15 2013 Amendments to the Commission Rules

§ 1:16 2018 Amendments to the Commission Rules

§ 1:17 2024 proposed amendments to the commission rules

CHAPTER 2. CHARACTERISTICS

§2:1 Introduction

§ 2:2 The Commission

§2:3 Trade Remedy Assistance Office

§2:4 Jurisdiction: Generally

§ 2:5 Jurisdiction: Definitions and Sources

§ 2:6 Subject Matter Jurisdiction

§ 2:7 In Rem Jurisdiction

§ 2:8 In Personam Jurisdiction

§2:9 Jurisdiction Requirements for Default and Discovery

XVvii



UnrairR CoMPETITION AND THE ITC

§ 2:10 Elements of a Violation of Section 337: Generally

§ 2:11 Elements of a Violation of Section 337: Unfair Acts

§ 2:12 Unfair Acts Based on Process Patents

§ 2:13 Elements of a Violation of Section 337: Importation, Sale for Importation, or Sale After
Importation

§ 2:14 Elements of a Violation of Section 337: Domestic Industry

§ 2:15 Domestic Industry: Patents, Copyrights, Trademarks, Mask Works, and Designs

§ 2:16 Domestic Industry: Other Unfair Methods of Competition

§ 2:17 Domestic Industry: Timing for Determining its Existence

§ 2:18 Domestic Industry: Special Procedures for Determining its Existence

§ 2:19 Early Consideration of Domestic Industry and Other Investigation-Dispositive Issues

§ 2:20 Elements of a Violation of Section 337: Injury

§ 2:21 Target Dates

§ 2:22  Due Process

§ 2:23 Remedy

§ 2:24 Presidential Review

CHAPTER 3. COMMENCEMENT OF INVESTIGATION

I. PRE-FILING CONSIDERATIONS

A. COMPLAINANT’S CASE

§ 3:1 Weighing an ITC Investigation Against Other Options
§ 3:2 Complainant’s Pre-Filing Considerations

B. PRE-FILING CONSULTATION WITH THE OFFICE OF UNFAIR IMPORT
INVESTIGATIONS (OUII)

§ 3:3  Pre-Filing Consultation with the Office of Unfair Import Investigations (OUII)

C. RESPONDENT’S PREPARATION

§ 3:4 Strategies for Before and Shortly After Institution of an Investigation
§ 3:5 Strategies for Responding to a Complaint and Notice of Investigation

D. ROLE OF THE OUII INVESTIGATIVE ATTORNEY
§ 3:6  Role of the OUII Investigative Attorney

E. RIGHT TO COUNSEL

§ 3:7 Generally
§ 3:8 Foreign Attorneys
§ 3:9 Disqualifications of Counsel and Conflicts of Interest

F. SECTION 603 PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATIONS
§ 3:10 Section 603 Preliminary Investigations

II. PREPARING AND FILING THE COMPLAINT

A. COMPLAINT
§ 3:11 Contents of the Complaint

XViil



TaBLE oF CONTENTS

§ 3:12
§3:13
§ 3:14

B.

§ 3:15
§ 3:16
§ 3:17
§ 3:18
§ 3:19
§ 3:20

Filing the Complaint
Amendments to the Complaint
Withdrawal of a Complaint

STANDING OF COMPLAINANT TO SUE

Generally

Jurisdictional Issues
Indispensable Party/Proper Party
Domestic Industry Requirement

Unfair Acts of Importation by Respondents That May Be Reached

Pre-Existing Arbitration and Forum Selection Agreements

ITII. INSTITUTION OF INVESTIGATION

§ 3:21
§ 3:22
§ 3:23
§ 3:24

Institution

Service of Complaint and Notice of Investigation
Assignment to Administrative Law Judge

Ex Parte Communications

IV. RESPONSE TO THE COMPLAINT

A.

§ 3:25
§ 3:26

B.

§ 3:27

RESPONSE

Timing of the Response
Contents of the Response

COUNTERCLAIMS
Generally

V. MEDIATION

§ 3:28

The Commission’s Mediation Program

VI. DEFAULT

§ 3:29
§ 3:30
§ 3:31

VII.
§ 3:32

VIII.

A.

§ 3:33
§ 3:34
§ 3:35
§ 3:36

Generally
Procedure
Illustrative Cases

INTERVENTION

Generally

MOTIONS FOR TEMPORARY RELIEF
MOTIONS

Generally

Motion Accompanying Complaint
Motion Filed After Complaint
Service of Motion by Complainant

Xix



Unrair CoMPETITION AND THE ITC

§ 3:37 Content of Service Copies and Accompanying Notice
§ 3:38  Provisional Acceptance of Motion

§ 3:39 Amendments to a Motion for Temporary Relief

§ 3:40 Withdrawal of a Motion for Temporary Relief

B. RESPONSE TO A MOTION FOR TEMPORARY RELIEF

§ 3:41 Timing of the Response
§ 3:42 Contents of the Response

CHAPTER 4. PRE-HEARING PROCEEDINGS

I. INITIAL PROCEEDINGS

§4:1 Events Occurring Upon Institution

§ 4:2 Protective Orders

§ 4:3 Ground Rules

§ 4:4 Setting the Procedural Schedule

§ 4:5 Consolidation and Severance of Investigations

II. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS INFORMATION AND PROTECTIVE ORDERS
A. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS INFORMATION (CBI)

§ 4:6 CBI: Definition and Identification

§ 4:7 Treatment of CBI and Declassification

§ 4:8 Retention of CBI

§4:9 Use of CBI in District Court Proceedings

B. ACCESS TO CBI

§ 4:10 Protective Orders and Amendments Thereto

§4:11  Access to CBI by In-House Personnel

§4:12  Access to CBI by Experts

§ 4:13  Activities of Outside Counsel That May Affect Access to CBI
§ 4:14 Violation of Protective Orders

§ 4:15 Sanctions for Violation of Protective Order

III. DISCOVERY PROCEDURES
A. IN GENERAL

§4:16 Timing and Limitations
§ 4:17 Scope of Discovery

§ 4:18 Duty to Supplement

§ 4:19 Discovery Motions

§ 4:20 Sanctions in Discovery

B. SPECIFIC METHODS OF DISCOVERY

1. Interrogatories
§ 4:21 Interrogatories Generally

XX



TaBLE oF CONTENTS

§ 4:22

§ 4:23
§ 4:24
§ 4:25
§ 4:26

§ 4:27

§ 4:28
§ 4:29

§ 4:30
§ 4:31
§ 4:32

§ 4:33

C.

§ 4:34

D.

§ 4:35
§ 4:36

§ 4:37
§ 4:38
§ 4:39
§ 4:40
§ 4:41
§ 4:42
§ 4:43

§ 4:44
§ 4:45
§ 4:46

Contention Interrogatories

2. Production of Documents and Things and Entry Upon Land

Scope

Procedure

Illustrative Cases

Electronically Stored Information

3. Subpoenas
Procedure for Application and Enforcement
4. Depositions

Requirements
Illustrative Cases

5. Requests for Admission

Requirements
Answers and Objections
Effect

6. Discovery of the OUII Investigative Attorney
Discovery of the OUII Investigative Attorney Generally

DEFAULT
Default

LIMITATIONS ON DISCOVERY
1. In General

Discretion of the Administrative Law Judges
Motions for Protective Orders

2. Privileges

Privileges Generally

Scope of Attorney-Client Privilege

Fraud Exception to the Attorney-Client Privilege
Waiver of Attorney-Client Privilege

Scope of Work Product Immunity

Waiver of Work Product Immunity

Joint Defense Privilege

3. Foreign Discovery

Introduction
Service Abroad of Documents Other Than Discovery Requests
Taking Discovery of Persons Abroad

IV. MOTION PRACTICE

§ 4:47

Motion Practice Generally

xx1



UnrairR CoMPETITION AND THE ITC

§ 4:48 Motions to Compel

V. DUTY OF CANDOR, ABUSE OF PROCESS, AND SANCTIONS
A. GENERALLY

§ 4:49 Duty of Candor, Abuse of Process, and Sanctions Generally
§ 4:50 Standard of Conduct

§ 4:51 Alleging Violations of the Standard

§ 4:52 Sanctions for Violations

B. ILLUSTRATIVE CASES
§ 4:53  Frivolous Allegations in the Complaint

§ 4:54 Frivolous Defenses in Response to the Complaint
§ 4:55 Safe Harbor Period

§ 4:56 Other Timing Issues

VI. SUMMARY DETERMINATION

§ 4:57 Summary Determination Generally

VII. PRE-HEARING TERMINATION OF INVESTIGATIONS

§ 4:58 Pre-Hearing Termination of Investigations Generally
§ 4:59  Settlement

§ 4:60 Consent Order

§ 4:61 Withdrawal of the Complaint

§ 4:62 Other Good Cause

§ 4:63 Requests for Early Disposition

CHAPTER 5. HEARING

I. ELEMENTS AND IMPORTANCE

§5:1 Generally
§ 5:2 Location and Order of the Hearing

A. PERMANENT RELIEF HEARING

§ 5:3 Procedural Overview
§ 5:4 Time Limits and Their Effects

B. TEMPORARY RELIEF HEARING

§ 5:5 Procedural Overview
§ 5:6 Contested Issues

C. OTHER HEARINGS

§ 5:7 Markman Hearings
§ 5:8 Hearings in Other Commission Proceedings

xxii



TaBLE oF CONTENTS

II. PRE-HEARING BRIEFS, PRE-HEARING STATEMENTS, AND OTHER

SUBMISSIONS

§5:9
§ 5:10

III.

§ 5:11
§5:12
§ 5:13
§5:14
§ 5:15
§ 5:16

Pre-Hearing Briefs and Statements
Motions in Limine and High Priority Objections

PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE

Generally
Jurisdiction

Pending Motions
Objections to Exhibits
Stipulations

Witness Lists

IV. EVIDENCE

§ 5:17
§5:18
§ 5:19
§ 5:20
§5:21
§ 5:22
§ 5:23

Burden and Standard of Proof

Admissibility

Objections, Excluded Evidence, and Official Notice
Witnesses

Expert Testimony

Use of Deposition Transcripts

Exhibits

V. RECORD

§ 5:24
§ 5:25
§ 5:26
§ 5:27
§ 5:28

Definition

Reporting and Transcription
Classification

Closing and Re-Opening the Record
Certification

VI. POST-HEARING BRIEFS

§ 5:29
§ 5:30

VIIL.

§ 5:31
§ 5:32
§ 5:33
§ 5:34
§ 5:35

Generally
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

POTENTIAL HEARING DELAYS

Suspension/Stay of Investigation
Interlocutory Review

Bankruptcy

Other Reasons for Delay

“More Complicated” Temporary Relief Cases

CHAPTER 6. INITIAL DETERMINATION (ID)
I. CONTENTS OF THE ID

§6:1

Introduction

xxiii



UnrairR CoMPETITION AND THE ITC

§ 6:2 Contents, Generally
§ 6:3 Permanent Relief Proceedings
§ 6:4 Temporary Relief Proceedings

II. TIME LIMITS

§ 6:5 Permanent Relief Proceedings
§ 6:6 Temporary Relief Proceedings

III. SERVICE OF ID/PETITIONS FOR REVIEW AND WRITTEN COMMENTS/
NOTICE OF ID

§ 6:7 Service on Parties

§ 6:8 Petitions for Review—Permanent Relief

§6:9 Written Comments—Temporary Relief

§ 6:10 Notice of ID to Other Agencies—Permanent Relief

§6:11 —Temporary Relief

IV. RECOMMENDED DETERMINATION (RD) ON REMEDY AND BONDING

§6:12 Generally

V. EFFECTS OF THE ID

§ 6:13 Certification to Commission
§ 6:14 Commission Action—Determination Not to Review
§ 6:15 —Determination to Review

CHAPTER 7. FINAL DETERMINATION, REMEDY, AND BONDING

§7:1 Commission Review Generally
§ 7:2 Ex Parte Contacts/Lobbying

I. COMMISSION REVIEW AND DETERMINATION ON VIOLATION ISSUE
A. INITIATION OF REVIEW
1. Party Petitions for Review

§ 7:3 Permanent Relief Proceedings
§ 7:4 Temporary Relief Proceedings

2. Commission Self-Initiated Review
§ 7.5 Generally

B. PROCEDURE ON REVIEW (PERMANENT RELIEF PROCEEDINGS)

§ 7.6 Briefs/Oral Argument
§ 7:7 Standard for Commission Review
§ 7:8 Scope of and Determination on Review

XXIV



TaBLE oF CONTENTS

II. DETERMINATION ON REMEDY, PUBLIC INTEREST, AND BONDING
ISSUES

§7:9 Generally

A. REMEDY

§ 7:10 Generally

§ 7:11 Limited Exclusion Orders

§ 7:12  General Exclusion Orders

§ 7:13 Duration of Exclusion Orders

§ 7:14  Scope of Exclusion Orders

§ 7:15 Modification of Exclusion Orders
§ 7:16 Cease and Desist Orders

B. PUBLIC INTEREST
§ 7:17 Generally
§ 7:18 Standards Essential Patents and FRAND Issues

C. BONDING

§ 7:19 Respondent’s Bond
§ 7:20 Complainant’s Bond (Temporary Relief Proceedings)
§ 7:21 Bond Forfeiture

III. EFFECT OF COMMISSION DETERMINATIONS

§ 7:22  Finality
§ 7:23  Enforceability
§ 7:24 Duration

IV. RECONSIDERATION OF COMMISSION DETERMINATIONS
§ 7:25 Generally

CHAPTER 8. PRESIDENTIAL REVIEW

I. PURPOSE, SCOPE, AND EFFECT

§ 8:1 Purpose
§ 8:2 Scope
§ 8:3 Effect

II. ILLUSTRATIVE CASES

§ 8:4 Steel Pipe and Tube (1978)

§ 8:5 Headboxes (1981)

§ 8:6 Sandwich Panel Inserts (1982)

§ 8:7 Alkaline Batteries (1984)

§ 8:8 Dynamic Random Access Memories (1986)
§8:9 Electronic Devices (2013)

XXV



UnrairR CoMPETITION AND THE ITC

§ 8:10 Lithium Ion Batteries (2021)

CHAPTER 9. JUDICIAL REVIEW

§9:1 By Whom and When: Ripeness/Finality

§ 9:2 Final Determination

§9:3 Adversely Affected

§9:4 Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies

§ 9:5 Standard of Review/Burden of Proof: Findings of Fact

§ 9:6 Standard of Review/Burden of Proof: Conclusions of Law

§ 9:7 Standard of Review/Burden of Proof: Remedy

§9:8 Standard of Review/Burden of Proof: Temporary Relief

§9:9 How ITC Determinations Impact District Court Proceedings
§ 9:10 How District Court Determinations Impact ITC Proceedings
§9:11 How ITC Determinations Impact PTAB Proceedings

§ 9:12 How PTAB Determinations Impact ITC Proceedings

§ 9:13 Interlocutory Appeals

§9:14 Mandamus Actions

CHAPTER 10. ENFORCEMENT, ADVISORY OPINIONS,

MODIFICATION, AND REVOCATION

§ 10:1 Introduction

§ 10:2 ITC Enforcement Proceedings

§10:3 Exclusion Order Enforcement by Customs

§ 10:4 Issues With Customs’ Enforcement of Exclusion Orders
§ 10:5 Exclusion Order Enforcement by the Commission
§ 10:6 Cease and Desist Orders

§ 10:7 Consent Orders

§ 10:8  Abuse of Enforcement/Emergency Relief

§10:9 Advisory Opinions

§ 10:10 Modification and Revocation: Changed Conditions
§ 10:11  Procedures Used in Ancillary Proceedings

CHAPTER 11. LEGISLATIVE CHANGES TO SECTION 337

I. PRE-2000S LEGISLATIVE CHANGES TO COMPLY WITH
INTERNATIONAL TRADE AGREEMENTS

§ 11:1 Complaints Based on General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT)

§ 11:2 Spring Assemblies

§ 11:3 Aramid Fiber

§ 11:4  Proposed Modifications to Section 337 Based on the GATT Panel Report From Aramid
Fiber

§ 11:5 NAFTA and Section 337

II. MORE RECENT LEGISLATIVE (AND OTHER) RECOMMENDATIONS
RELATED TO SECTION 337

§ 11:6 Actions preceding introduction of Legislation to Address Use of Section 337 By Non-
Practicing Entities

XXV



TaBLE oF CONTENTS

§ 11:7 2014 Proposed Trade Protection Not Troll Protection Act

§ 11:8 2013 White House Task Force on High-Tech Patent Issues

§ 11:9 2013 White House Joint Strategic Plan on Intellectual Property Enforcement

§ 11:10 20122013 Other Congressional Hearings Regarding NPEs and Section 337

§ 11:11 2012 Proposed Legislation to Address Use of Section 337 by Owners of Standard-

Essential Patents and 2019 “Policy Statement” on Same
§ 11:12 2021 Stopping and Excluding Chinese Rip-Offs and Exports of the United States Trade
Secrets Act

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A. Text of 19 U.S.C.A. § 1337 (section 337, as amended), and Text of 28 U.S.C.A.
§ 1659

APPENDIX B. ITC Rules of Practice and Procedure (Effective June 7, 2018)

APPENDIX C. Substantive Elements of Proof of Violation Under Section 337 in Intellectual
Property-Based Investigations and Defenses Thereto

APPENDIX D. Checklist for Filing a Section 337 Complaint That Is Not Accompanied By a
Motion for Temporary Relief

APPENDIX E. Relative Advantages and Disadvantages of ITC and U.S. District Court For
Relief From Patent Infringement

APPENDIX F. Time Lines for Permanent and Temporary Relief Phases of a Section 337
Investigation

APPENDIX G. Ground Rules of Judge Clark S. Cheney

APPENDIX H. Ground Rules of Judge Maryjoan McNamara

APPENDIXI. Ground Rules of Judge Cameron Elliot

APPENDIX J. Ground Rules of Judge Monica Bhattacharyya

APPENDIX K. Ground Rules of Judge Bryan F. Moore

APPENDIX L.  Ground Rules of Doris Johnson Hines

APPENDIX M. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge Clark S. Cheney

APPENDIX N. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge MaryJoan McNamara

APPENDIX O. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge Cameron Elliot

APPENDIX P. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge Monica Battacharyya

APPENDIX Q. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge Bryan F. Moore

APPENDIX R. Exemplary Procedural Schedule for Judge Doris Johnson Hines

APPENDIX S. List of Section 337 Investigations Since 1974

APPENDIX T. Biographical Resumes of Present ITC Commissioners and Administrative Law
Judges

APPENDIX U. Selected Bibliography

Table of Cases

Index

XXVil



